
From: Anthony_Crandell/ 

To: Christiane Guillot Staff NSWPolice% NSWPolice; Christiane Guil lot 

Subject: Fwd: Article Report re tn e Force Parrabell [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED] 
Date: Monday, 20 August 2018 20:29:01 

Hi Christiane 

FYI 

Anthony Crandell APM 

Assistant Commissioner 

Commander, Education 
and Training Command 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Birch, Philip" <pbirch@csu.edu.au> 
Date: 20 August 2018 at 8:14: 18 pm AEST 
To: "Anthony Crandell" < 

taff NSWPolice%NSWPolice 

Cc: "Wayne Sievers (mmrwayne@bigpond.net.au)" <mmrwayne@bigpond.net.au>, "Michael Kennedy" 
<m.kennedy@westemsydney.edu.au> 
Subject: Re: Article Report re Strike Force Parrabell [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED] 

SCOl.74721 0001 

Marvellous - let's lock in 12noon! Around the room you were in, on campus, when you were last up here with Tracey 
and Colin! I'll meet you there:-) 

12noon 14th September - it's in my diary. 

Cheers 
Phil 

Dr. Philip Birch, FHEA. 
Senior Lecturer in Criminology 
Centre for Law & Justice 
Charles Sturt University (Port Macquarie) 

Deputy Co-Editor, Salus Journal I Submit your paper here 

Honorary Research Fellow I School of Psychology, UC Lan, UK. 

Senior Research Associate I Ashworth Research Centre, Ashworth High Secure Hospital, NHS, UK. 

(t) +61 (0) 402 303819 
( CSU Profile) https:/ /bjbs.csu.edu.au/ centres/law-and-justj ce/staffi'profiles/ academi c-staffi'phihp-birch 

>wrote: 

Thanks Phil 

At this stage I am doing some media about recruiting country students using CSU faculties in Port Macquarie. That is 
scheduled tentatively between 2pm and 3pm and I will need to be back in Sydney thereafter. 

About 12 or 1 pm that day would be good for me. 

Anthony Crandell APM 
Assistant Commissioner 
Commander, Education 
and Training Command 



SCOl.74721 0002 

On 20 Aug 2018, at 8:06 pm, Birch, Philip <pbirch@csu.edu.au<mailto:pbirch@csu.edu.au>> wrote: 

Well shall we pencil something in on the 14th? 
Are you on campus? If you let me know a time I shall work around you. 

In the meantime I can do some enquiries. I hold a couple of research fellowships in research centres in the UK -
working along side Profoessor Jane Ireland - Michael knows Jane. I get access to research assistants. I could see if one 
will do a systematic review on bias crime indicators that can then be used to develop a model for you:-). 

All very exciting! Let me know a time on the 14th and we can lock it in. 

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
( CSU Profile) https://bjbs.csu.edu.au/ centres/law-and-justice/staff/profiles/ academic-staff/philip-birch 

On Mon, Au 20, 2018 at 8:00 PM +1000, "Anthon Crandell" 

Hi Phil 

All sounds good. I am actually in Port on the 14/9. 

I am also able meet during the afternoon of the 6/9 or anytime on the 7/9. 

Thanks again. 

Anthony Crandell APM 
Assistant Commissioner 
Commander, Education 
and Training Command 

On 20 Aug 2018, at 4: 18 pm, Birch, Philip <pbirch@csu.edu.au<mailto:pbirch@csu.edu.au> 
<mailto:pbirch@csu.edu.au>> wrote: 

Hello Tony, 

>wrote: 

Why don't we have a meeting then, we can have a chat about your observations on the data and then let's see how we 
can frame an article from that. 

As for the bias crime indicator - sounds like a really good project. Let me put some feelers out - we maybe about to get 
an honours student to look at something for us - at least a preliminary examination of hate crime and some form of 
model that we maybe able to look to extend. I'll see if there is any interest and we can chat about this when we catch 
up. 
I'm not sure if you know but I have recently completed a preliminary hate crime study amongst inmates in the Scottish 
prison service. Its on my list of things to get written up into an article - that's on my October list of things to do :-)! 

How are you fixed for a meeting on either the 6th or 7th September for a chat? I know it's a few weeks away but I have 
a deadline for another article to be revised and resubmitted and then start a book chapter that's due to be submitted at 
the end of September - ifl can spend some time making head way with these projects that would be really helpful. 

Let me know and I can schedule a online meeting with our CSU technology, unless you are planning on being up in 
Port over the next few weeks? 



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
( CSU Profile) https://bjbs.csu.edu.au/centres/law-and-justice/staff/profiles/ academic-staff/philip-birch 

From: Anthon Crandell 
> 

Sent: Monday, August 20, 2018 15:03 
To: Birch, Philip 
Cc: Wa ne Sievers 

; Michael Kennedy 
Subject: RE: Article Report re Strike Force Parrabell [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED] 

Hi Phil, 

SCOl.74721 0003 

Apologies for not responding earlier.I think the original plan was for an article to be written about the deathsand 
perhaps contrary findings for the Australian Police Journal. Ifyouwere considering analysing the approach by Flinders 
regarding some oftheinaccuracies in classifications, especially those in the paedophile range,! would be happy to 
arrange a meeting beforehand - if that is appropriate. 

From a purely policing perspective,! would like to develop a simplified bias crime indicator for operationalpolice 
because both the Parrabell and academic teams had difficulty categorisingthese matters consistently with the 10 bias 
crime indicators model then,and now, used by the NSWPF. 

I was not aware of the additional linkbetween Flinders and related criminal activity, albeit I was aware thatDerek 
Dalton had published material in related areas. I am not sure thatyou anticipated anything further than contributing to 
an article, howeverif you think further development of a bias crimes indicator is within yourscope, I am interested in 
your thoughts. 

Thanks for your work so far. 

[ cjd· 2 0B9C90980B9C8E58001BD271 CA2582EF] 

From: 
To: 

Cc: 

"Birch, Philip"< bi c 
Anthony Crandell 

Date: 20/08/2018 11:50 
Subject: RE: ArticleReport re Strike Force Parrabell 

Hi All, 
I am just following up on the email I sent the other week. Yesterday, I came across 'The Family'murders and the 
subsequent conviction of Bevan Spencer Von Einem. Areyou aware of these murders in South Australia in late 
1970's/early 1980's. It is proposed that a group of men would target young men, gay menand young boys (one victim 
was just 14) raped and then murdered. TheForensic Science department at Flinders university was involved in 
examiningDNA linked to this crime. I thought this was interesting in lightofthe Criminology Department at Flinders 
university linking the gay murdersin Sydney to paedophilia. I suspect the criminology team at Flindersmay have been 
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influenced by this SA case when they looked at your StrikeForce Parrabell report. I suspect drawing links between the 
two caseswill have benefited the Flinders academics more than it would have NSWPF. 

Where you aware of this???? 

Cheers 
Phil 

Dr. Philip Birch, FHEA. 
Senior Lecturer in Criminology 
Centre for Law & Justice 
Charles Sturt University(Port Macquarie) 

Deputy Co-Editor, SalusJournal I Submit your paper here<http: //scci.csu.edu.au/salusjournal/> 

Honorary Research Fellow I School of Psychology, UCLan, UK. 

Senior Research Associate! Ashworth Research Centre, Ashworth High Secure Hospital, NHS, UK. 

(t) +61 (0) 402 303819 
( CSU Profile) https:/ /bjbs.csu.edu au/ centres/law-and-justj ce/staffi'profi Jes/ academic-staf£1phihp-birch 

From: Birch, Philip 
Sent: Tuesday, 7 August 2018 4:45 PM 
To: 'Anthon Crandell' 

Subject: RE: Article Report re Strike Force Parrabell 

Hello Everyone, 

I have been through the reportand thought I would share some thoughts with you. The decision thenis next steps. 

I will try and capture mythoughts/observations below, but ifwe need to have a chat about this,! can arrange an online 
meeting through our great CSU technology. Sohere goes (hope my stream of consciousness makes sense): 

1. Boththe NSWPF report and Flinders report as stand-alone reports are both good,the problem lies with the fact 
they are two stand-alone reports that havebeen brought together and compared. Both reports use two 
differentanalytical frameworks, albeit on the same 'dataset' but as to be expectedtwo different analytical frameworks 
have garnered two different findings. Comparing the two sets of findings is problematic/wrong. 
2. Basedon the terms of reference it would seem that what's missing here is externalvalidity .... That being an 
external assessor/researcher to SFP, who would/shouldhave conducted the same approach SFP used to assessing the 
homicides seeif they come up with the same results - this would have been a more fruitfulexercise in terms of a 
comparison. 
3. lam not convinced you can draw any conclusion about police practice andinvestigation other than what is done 
today is different. The reviewby Flinders seems to be examining police practice of 1970's, 1980's andl990's through 
a 2017 lens - of course it is different, forensic tools,investigative interviewing as well as society and culture. If 
you want to examine if police did not look into these cases with enough vigour/withoutprejudice than we would need to 
look at other homicides during this timeframe - to see how the police conducted the investigations. Y oucould do this 
broadly, and/or by looking at other homicide 'hate crimes'where race, disability was present. ... If you look at other 
murders andfind there is difference then there is a scope to draw conclusions/implicationsofwhat that difference 
is/was. 
4. Theterm hate crime/bias crime has been used/applied retrospectively - thisterms first made its way into 
legislation in 1981 - in Washingtonand Oregon, over subsequent years the terms became more widely used-but over 
time, NSWPF solved more of these murders than they didn't. ... so it could be argued as 'hate crime' became more of a 
mainstream term,it was reflected in practice .... hence the improvements in solving the cases. In hind sight if we view 
these crimes as hate crimes, let's comparethen to other hate crime murders and make an assessment of 
good/bad/indifferencepractice. 
5. Ith ought the leap to and link to paedophiles was strange, bizarre, unwarrantedand not justified. Flinders seemed 
to support this category basedon a 60 year old coming onto a 17 year old lad .... This isn't paedophile. It may 
contravene social norms re: the age difference but it's notpaedophillia. Again in the 1970' /1980's age of consent was 
different/homosexualityillegal in NSW for some of this time, but Paedophilia isdefined as an ongoingsexual attraction 
to pre-pubertal children, so 13 years and younger, nota 17 year old. Was there evidence in the case files of any of 
thesemen engaging with children in a sexual manner? Flinders noted earlyin their report that they were solely engaged 
in an evidence based approach,yet used justification that some people in society viewed gay men as paedophile sand 
therefore 'we will use this as a category' for analytical purposes .... This was all bit strange to me ... 
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There are a couple ofthingsthat can be done here: 

1. Lookat the categories NSWPF SFP generated and how they cross reference to thecategories Flinders have. So of 
the 8 men who were claimed to bebias homicides by NSWPF, where do they feature in Flinders list- do theymake up 
part of the 1 7 of anti-bias crimes, or have they been categorisedelsewhere and why .... As these seems unclear. The 
datasets when presentedand compared in the Flinders report don't do this, probably because youcan't; 
2. Takethe NSWPF hate crime matrix used to classify these homicides, and lookat other hate crime homicides at 
the time to evaluate hate crime murdersand how they were investigated as well as changes over time (this couldhelp 
support a validation of this matrix - Flinders claimed it was unreliableas there was no evidence for it); 
3. Getsomeone to review the gay homicides using the same approach as NSWPF tosupport/refute the conclusions 
made - but using the same analytical framework. 

Not sure if the above makessense .... It does in my head, but not sure I have captured it well here. Also, Tony/Wayne, 
in previous emails you have noted your observations,would be good to know what you want out of this process and 
potential nextsteps, now that I have properly read the report. 

Hope the above helps andis not totally useless Q 

Cheers 
Phil 

Dr. Philip Birch, FHEA. 
Senior Lecturer in Criminology 
Centre for Law & Justice 
Charles Sturt University(Port Macquarie) 

Deputy Co-Editor, SalusJoumal I Submit your paper here<http: //scci.csu.edu.au/salusjoumal/> 

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

From: Anthony Crandell 
Sent: Sunday, 15 July 2018 10:01 AM 
To: Birch, Philip <pbirch@csu.edu.au<mailto:pbirch@csu.edu.au><mailto:pbirch@csu.edu.au> 
<mailto:pbirch@csu.edu.au>> 
Cc: Michael Kennedy <M.Kennedy@westemsydney.edu.au<mailto:M.Kennedy@westemsydney.edu.au> 

------- -------

Subject: Re: Article Report re Strike Force Parrabell 

Hi Phil 

ers 

The final Strike Force Parrabell reportis available on the NSW Police Force Internet site: 

www.police.nsw.gov.au/?a=575265<http: //www.police.nsw.gov.au/?a=575265><http://www.police.nsw.gov.au/? 
a=575265><http://www.police.nsw.gov.au/?a=575265> 

It includes the Flinders University Review from page 4 7. 

I have done some preliminary comparisonwork around differences in findings between Strike Force Parrabell andthe 
Academic Review. I am happy to share my additional statistics and findingswith you when the time is right. For 
example - the professors separatedanti-gay animus from anti-paedophile animus, whereas police did not, resultingin 
several cases with contrary findings. 

One case was particularly contentious (Dempsey)because of contrary findings for reasons related to the weight 
attachedto different portions of evidence. 

I also have a list of 86 case summaries,which are half-page descriptions of individual deaths including facts 
andcircumstances drawn from evidence within case files. These summaries werenot released publicly because many 
are especially gruesome. They were releasedconditionally to media reporters with a caveat that they were not for 
furtherdistribution. I can also provide you that material. 



Regards 

Anthony Crandell APM 
Assistant Commissioner 
Commander, Education 
and Training Command 

On 15 Jul 2018, at 9:30 am, Birch, Philip <pbirch@csu.edu.au<maj )to:pbirch@csu.edu.au> 
<mailto:pbirch@csu.edu au><mailto:pbirch@csu.edu au>>wrote: 
Hi Everyone, 

SCOl.74721 0006 

Thanks for this Michael. Is there somewhere I can locate the report and response that Flindershas produced? If so, I 
am happy to look at both and pull out somepoints to share with you, which could be used to formulate the articlefor the 
policing journal. Would that approach work? 

I have 4 projects I needto get finished by the end of the month, but I could look to doing thisfrom August. 

Let me know if this is agreeable,all I need are the two documents to look at. 

Cheers 
Phil 

Dr. Philip Birch, FHEA. 
Senior Lecturer in Criminology 
Centre for Law & Justice 
Charles Sturt University(Port Macquarie) 

Deputy Co-Editor, SalusJoumal I Submit your paper here<http://scci.csu.edu.au/salusioumal/> 

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

From: Michael Kennedy [ mailto:M.Kennedy@westemsydney.edu.au] 
Sent: Saturday, 14 Jul 2018 11:58 PM 
To: Ton Crandell 

Subject: Article Report re Strike Force Parrabell 

Dear All 

This email relates to my phone call rewriting an article for the Australian Police Journal re Operation Parrabelland 
some of the conflicting conclusions. 

Tony is the NSW Assistant Commissionerwho put together the final report that was reviewed by academics at 
Flinders Uni. 

Would it be possible for Phil and Wayneto put together an article for APJ. The reasons are fairly obvious. Waynewas 
the AFP Gay Liaison Officer and Phil in involved in commentary aboutidentity politics and masculinity. 

No one is suggesting that police couldnot have done a better job but some of the assumptions are baseless orbased on a 
tautological argument that is agenda driven. 

Tony I have also spoken to Phil abouta PhD candidature. I prefer his solution and think its more beneficialto you. Phil 
can you take this up with Tracey after a chat with Tony. Thanksmate. 

Anyway I will leave it up to you all tocommunicate with each other. I would suggest a few phone would be the wayto 



begin a discussion. Your contact details are below. 

J~~ 
Wayne 

Regards 

MK 

Dr Michael Kennedy 
Senior Lecturer 
Western Sydney University 
School of Social Science and Psychology 
m.kennedy@westemsydney edu au<maj)to·m kennedy@westemsydney edu au> 
<mailto:m.kennedy@westernsydney.edu.au><mailto:m.kennedy@westernsydney .edu.au> 
M +61 0418669584 
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Force policy, includingthe Email and Internet Policy and Guidelines. All NSW 
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policies, available on theNSW Police Force Intranet. 
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This email and any attachments maybe confidential and contain privileged information. It is intended forthe addressee 
only. If you are not the intended recipient you must notuse, disclose, copy or distribute this communication. 
Confidentiality orprivilege are not waived or lost by reason of the mistaken delivery toyou. If you have received this 
message in error, please delete and notifythe sender. 

All mail is subject to content scanning for possible violation ofNSW Police 
Force policy, including the Email and Internet Policy and Guidelines. AllNSW 
Police Force employees are required to familiarise themselves with these 
policies, available on the NSW Police Force Intranet. 
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